13 JULY 2022

NEW FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Minutes of a meeting of the Planning Committee held on Wednesday, 13 July 2022

* Cllr Christine Ward (Chairman)* Cllr Christine Hopkins (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors:

- * Ann Bellows
- * Sue Bennison
- * Hilary Brand
- * Anne Corbridge
- * Kate Crisell
- * Allan Glass
- * David Hawkins

Councillors:

- * Maureen Holding
- * Mahmoud Kangarani
- Joe Reilly
- * Barry Rickman
- * Tony Ring Ann Sevier
- Malcolm Wade

In attendance:

Councillors:

Jeremy Heron

Officers Attending:

James Gilfillan, Nigel Hewitson, David Norris, Warren Simmonds and Karen Wardle

Apologies

Apologies for absence had been received from Cllr Sevier.

8 MINUTES

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 8 June 2022 be agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

9 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Cllr Ring disclosed a non-pecuniary interest in applications 22/10546 and 22/10547 as a member of Ringwood Town Council which had commented on the applications. He concluded that there were no grounds under common law to prevent him from remaining in the meeting to speak and to vote.

Cllrs Crisell and Kangarani disclosed a non-pecuniary interest in application 22/10268 as members of Totton and Eling Town Council which had commented on the application. They concluded that there were no grounds under common law to prevent them from remaining in the meeting to speak and to vote.

^{*}Present

Cllr Kangarani disclosed a non-pecuniary interest in application 22/10424 as the applicant had contacted him in relation to the application. He concluded however that there were no grounds under common law to prevent him from remaining in the meeting to speak and to vote.

Cllr Wade disclosed a non-pecuniary interest in application 22/10424 as a member of Hythe and Dibden Parish Council which had commented on the application. He concluded that there were no grounds under common law to prevent him from remaining in the meeting to speak and to vote.

10 PLANNING APPLICATIONS FOR COMMITTEE DECISION

a Land adjacent Westlands, Sky End Lane, Hordle (22/10381)

This application had been WITHDRAWN by the applicant.

b Fairfield, Cooks Lane, Calmore, Totton (Application 22/10268)

Details:

2 detached dwellings; conversion of Fairfield to 2 semi-detached dwellings; demolition of existing garden/barn

Public Participants:

Mr Brett, Test Valley Building LLP (Agent) Mr Martin Pink (Objector)

Additional Representations:

None

Comment:

Clirs Crisell and Kangarani disclosed a non-pecuniary interest as members of Totton and Eling Town Council which had commented on the application. They concluded that there were no grounds under common law to prevent them from remaining in the meeting to speak and to vote.

Decision:

Delegated Authority be given to the Executive Head of Planning, Regeneration and Economy to **GRANT PERMISSION** subject to:

- the completion of a S106 legal agreement (or Unilateral Undertaking) to secure the relevant habitats mitigation and air quality monitoring contributions as set out in the officer report to Committee; and
- ii) the imposition of the conditions set out in the report.

Conditions / Reasons:

As per report (Item 3b)

c 15-17 High Street, Hythe (Application 22/10424)

Details:

Two-storey building comprising of shops, two flats and a garage (Retrospective)

Public Participants:

Bob Hull (Agent) Cllr Philip Dowd, Hythe and Dibden Parish Council

Additional Representations:

None

Comment:

Cllr Kangarani disclosed a non-pecuniary interest in application as the applicant had contacted him in relation to the application. He concluded however that there were no grounds under common law to prevent him from remaining in the meeting to speak and to vote.

Cllr Wade disclosed a non-pecuniary interest as a member of Hythe and Dibden Parish Council which had commented on the application. He concluded that there were no grounds under common law to prevent him from remaining in the meeting to speak and to vote.

Decision:

Delegated Authority be given to the Executive Head of Planning, Regeneration and Economy to **GRANT PERMISSION** subject to:

- (i) the completion by the landowner of a planning obligation entered into by way of a Section 106 Agreement (or unilateral undertaking) to secure appropriate contributions in respect of habitats mitigation and air quality monitoring (as set out in the committee report); and
- (ii) the imposition of the conditions set out in the report.

Conditions / Reasons:

As per report (Item 3c)

d 12 The Furlong, Ringwood (Application 22/10546)

Details:

External Seating areas to be used in conjunction with Arboro Lounge (Retrospective)

Public Participants:

Cllr Philip Day, Ringwood Town Council

Additional Representations:

An additional representation had been received from Cllr Jeremy Heron in objection to the application due to the impact the proposal would have on the streetscene and the open courtyard character of the space reflecting its historic use. This had been included in the update note circulated prior to the meeting.

Comment:

Cllr Ring disclosed a non-pecuniary interest as a member of Ringwood Town Council which had commented on the application. He concluded that there were no grounds under common law to prevent him from remaining in the meeting to speak and to vote.

Members of the Committee expressed concerns regarding the enclosures for the seating area and associated structures. They felt that the siting and design would have an adverse impact upon the open character of this important space and within the Conservation Area.

Decision:

Refuse

Conditions / Reasons:

The proposed enclosures and ancillary structures would by reason of their design and siting, have an adverse impact upon the open character of this important space within the centre of Ringwood and within the Conservation Area, and would therefore be contrary to Policy ENV3 of the Local Plan Part 1 Planning Strategy and Policy DM1 of the Local Plan Part 2 Sites and Development Management for the New Forest Outside of the National Park.

e 12 The Furlong, Ringwood (Application 22/10547)

Details:

Display non illuminated letter sign to planters (Application for Advertise Consent) (Retrospective)

Public Participants:

None

Additional Representations:

None

Comment:

Cllr Ring disclosed a non-pecuniary interest as a member of Ringwood Town Council which had commented on the application. He concluded that there were no grounds under common law to prevent him from remaining in the meeting to speak and to vote.

The Committee noted that the previous application, 22/10546 for the same site, to surround an external seating area with timber planters had been refused. The application before members related to a non-illuminated sign being displayed on one of those timber planters. Members therefore determined the application on the basis that the previous application had been refused. They felt that the advertisement and the supporting structure, due to its design and siting, would have an adverse impact upon the amenity of the area.

Decision:

Refuse

Conditions / Reasons:

The proposed advertisement together with the necessary supporting structure would, by reason of the design and siting, have an adverse impact upon the amenity of the area and would be contrary to ENV3 of the Local Plan Part 1 Planning Strategy and Policy DM1 of the Local Plan Part 2 Sites and Development Management for the New Forest Outside of the National Park.

CHAIRMAN